Public Notice of Meeting
WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE
SCHOOL BOARD MEETING

Tuesday, September 14, 2021
Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative M/H School
6:30 p.m.

Videoconferencing: meet.google.com/sij-gadp-sdf

Audio: +1 937-877-2290 PIN: 766 549 452#

Due to current events, all videoconferencing options may be subject to modifications. Please check
www.sau63.org for the latest information.

II.

I11.

Iv.

VI

VIIL

VIIL

IX.

XI.

CALL TO ORDER-Alexander LoVerme-Chair
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA

PUBLIC COMMENTS: This is the public’s opportunity to speak to items on the agenda. In the
interest of preserving individual privacy and due process rights, the Board requests that comments
(including complaints) regarding individual employees or students be directed to the Superintendent
in accord with the processes set forth in School Board Policies KE and KEB.

BOARD CORRESPONDENCE
a. Reports
i.  Superintendent’s Report
ii.  Principals’ Reports
iii.  Curriculum Coordinator’s Report
b. Letters/Information
i.  Board Stipend Form
ii.  Enrollment

ACTION ITEMS
a. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting

POLICIES-15T READ
i.  ACE Procedural Safeguards Nondiscrimination on the Basis of
Handicap/Disability
ii.  AD Philosophy of the School District
iii. ~ BDE Committees and Delegates
iv.  KEC Policy on Reconsideration of Instructional Materials
v.  KEC-R Reconsideration of Instructional Materials

COMMITTEE REPORTS
1. Facilities Committee
ii. Policy Committee

RESIGNATIONS/APPOINTMENTS/LEAVES

a. Resignation-Shawn Boyce-WLC Paraprofessional
b. Pending New Hires

BUDGET TIMELINE

SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS



XII. ADJOURNMENT

INFORMATION: Next School Board Meeting-September 28, 6:30 PM at WLC

The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, sexual orientation,

gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice.



Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District
School Administrative Unit #63

192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082
603-732-9227

Peter Weaver Ned Pratt Kristie LaPlante Emily Stefanich
Superintendent of Schools Director of Student Support Services Business Administrator District Curriculum Coordinator

We’ve had an excellent start to the school year! I've been in our schools multiple times,
spending time with students and staff. They are engaged and excited. Our facility staff really
worked hard this summer and it clearly shows in the cleanliness and organization of the
building. Our administrative team is pushing forward individually, while continuing to grow as a
collaborative leadership team.

e Our opening day on September 24th was energizing,
positive, and forward looking. We discussed
curriculum & climate/culture as two areas to focus on
this year. Bill Preble involved our staff in activities to
show how we can promote culture with our
students. We also had a great conversation on
leadership, what that looks like in all of us as leaders,
and critical traits in effective leaders. The photo is a
picture of our opening activity. All of our staff played a
massive game of rocks, paper, scissors! We crowned
a champion and hope to continue this community building activity every year.

e LCS has been an incredible experience! Our staff is terrific, the students are
wonderful, and our parents are very supportive. Looking ahead, | am planning to have a
LCS community meeting this month to solicit volunteers to work on our playground. The
“‘event” will be on a Saturday towards the end of the month, and | will bring the pizzal

e On August 31st, | met with Paul Branscombe, our Wilton Town Administrator. We had
a great conversation about working together for the betterment of our community and
our students. It was refreshing to speak with him. | am also meeting with Russ Boland,
our Lyndeborough Town Administrator on September 9th. It was a pleasure to talk with
him on the phone, and I'm looking forward to our meeting.

o We are almost fully staffed! We still have two paraeducator positions, a part-time
school psychologist, and a high school social studies to fill.

e« September 30th is an early release day for the District. We met as an administrative
team to plan the professional development. We’ll continue to focus on how we improve
the culture of our schools for our students.

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District provides a safe and educational environment that promotes student exploration, critical thinking and
responsible citizenship.

The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status,
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice.



WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE
MIDDLE SCHOOL / HIGH SCHOOL
57 SCHOOL ROAD
WILTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03086
(603) 732-9230
www.sau63.org

Dr. Sarah Edmunds, Principal Amanda J. Kovaliv, School Counseling Coordinator
Kathryn Gosselin, Assistant Principal Alice Bartoldus, Middle School Counselor
Brice Miller, Athletic Director

September 2021 WLC Principal's Report

The first days of school have been joyful and full of excitement. We continue to make health and
safety a priority as we make efforts to move students quickly through the hallways and continue our
enhanced cleaning practices. We urge students to stay at safe distances where possible.

New Teacher Orientation

On August 18 and 19, our new teachers took part in our yearly
orientation program. During the first day while working with
Curriculum Coordinator Emily Stefanich, they were introduced to the
mentoring handbook, proactive classroom management strategies,
curriculum and instruction procedures at WLC, and My Learning Plan
where they keep track of their professional development hours. On
day two, they met with Katie Gosselin and I to go over building level
information and procedures, emergency procedures, and schedules.
Science teacher Stephanie Erickson came in to help the new teachers
understand how to set up their grade books in Powerschool.

f During our orientation, we also took the van out for a tour of the
Wilton-Lyndeborough community! Thank you to Mrs. Linda Draper
for being our tour guide and sharing her wealth of knowledge.

Mentoring Program

We are incredibly lucky to have an established mentoring program in our district managed by
Laura Bujak at WLC. Each of our new teachers is assigned a mentor teacher. Research shows
that good mentoring programs significantly impact educator retention, professional growth, and
student achievement. During the new teacher orientation, our new faculty met with their mentor
teachers to begin forming relationships that will provide the kind of support they need to be
successful and help our students be successful.

Thank you to our 2021-2022 mentor teachers: Olympia Clark, Melissa Norton, Bill Comerford,
Allison Blondin, Katy Morshed, Katie Morrow, Cathy Blais, Stephanie Erickson, Cheryl
Richard, and Zach Provost.


http://www.sau63.org

The First Days of School!
The first day of school felt like a
celebration and a welcome home!
. Students were greeted with music
and welcome signs by all of the
teachers and staff.
On Friday of the first week, we had
a bit of fun together to celebrate the
first week and to send us off into
the long weekend. After lunch,
students had the opportunity to take
part in multiple activities such as
~arts and crafts, board games and
reading, basketball, and kickball.

Special Recognition: The WLC Athletics Hall of Fame

WLC is honored to recognize Mark Bausha, Arthur Deschenes, and Dan Holt for the time,
energy, and supplies donated to create our beautiful Athletics Hall of Fame wall. After some
conversations with Mr. Weaver, Mr. Bausha took it upon
himself to head up the hall of fame operation and enlisted Dan
Holt of Eastern Forest Products in getting the wall created. Mr.
Holt donated all of the supplies and equipment to build it and
Mr. Deschenes did all of the labor.

We look forward to getting the words, “WLC Hall of Fame” up
and inducting our first members. We would like to form a
committee to choose those individuals who will be inducted.
Community, school board, student, and faculty representation
should be on this committee! If anyone is interested, please
contact me!




Exciting News!

Andrew Tyler, WLC Computer Science Teacher, is a NH Teacher of the
Year Semi-Finalist! The NH Teacher of the year serves as an ambassador
for NH teachers and competes nationally for Teacher of the Year. The
next step for Mr. Tyler will be to meet with former NH Teachers of the
Year to learn about the responsibilities and expectations that come with
the honor. He will also give a speech to the selection committee on
September 15 about his role as an educator and innovator, the
opportunities he sees for education and the future of the educational
system, as well as what representing NH as Teacher of the Year would
mean to him. Congratulations, Mr. Tyler!




September Board Report
9.7.21
Preparing for Our Year Together:

All staff at FRES were welcomed back by Superintendent Weaver on Tuesday, August
24th. The message was positive and energizing. Following the district back to school
day, the FRES staff worked collaboratively to identify a specific set of norms to guide all
of the work and relationship building we will do this year. The staff adopted the 7 Norms
of Collaboration as a framework. The 7 Norms of Collaboration ensure all members of
the staff are respected, heard, celebrated for their individual gifts, and have a voice in
decision making. Here is a link to the seven norms the staff at FRES have committed
to: Quick look at 7 Norms.

Staff Dashboard:

Over the summer | created a staff dashboard. This is similar to a staff handbook. It is
completely digital and is made with a series of hyperlinks. These hyperlinks, which
bring the user directly to the form, handout, protocol, etc. they need, have been happily
received by the staff. Staff now can go to one central place to get all the information
they need.

g @ Fo x | M b x | & MyDri FRE x B Collabe | & MyDriv | (@ FREssT | B Luncha | B Untitlec | + ©

(] X

C (¢ @ https//docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1Ze64iyLGZbtGboNpunLXeVETXPRPRANTAKpKOe2mO3w/edit#gid=0 Y& M G :
E FRES STAFF Dashboard 2021-2022 School Year ¥ ) ° ~ B @ e
File Edit View Insert Format Data Tools Add-ons Help Lasteditwas ..
~ o~ F P 100% v $§ % .0 .00 123v Defaut(ai. v 10 v B I & A & H N

7 Norms of Collaboration

F G H | J K L

Emergency
Procedures contaCts

Evacuation SAU Contacts Student-Famil PD REQUEST FORM Field Trip Permission School Nurse Hell _Re uest
Routes e Handbook I Form e Links

Emergency

Response to [ FRES Phone List Leave Request Form
Action

7 Norms of
Collaboration

Substitute Staff Meeting
rs— Agendas and
Protocol n
e Minutes
Leadership Team
Agendas and
Minutes
Time Sheet
Example
Classroom List
9/2/21

FRES STAFF Dashboard 21-22 ~ Explore

5 9:42 AM
t wm Z Q)
L Type here to search D@ o J


https://docs.google.com/document/d/1_iErBn3a9WJxfUbmHoUtAgm_wbo720fUFH4EP2M-cm4/edit

Fun with Colleagues:

Teachers, para-educators, ABAs, custodians, and office staff took some time for team
building and a friendly competition during one of our staff back to school activities. Staff
members were divided into groups and given a challenge to complete as many specific
photos as possible. The pictures were famous quotes or movie posters. The winners
won a year long bragging opportunity as well as a lunch of their choice on me. Below
Mrs. Sappet, Mrs. Hawkes, and Mrs. Fuller re-enact the famous “See no evil, hear no
evil, speak no evil”. It was a thrill to hear all of the laughter and camaraderie the staff
experienced.

Students and Families Arrive:

FRES started the year with a Meet and Greet on Thursday, August 26, 2021. The event
was very well attended. Parents and guardians brought their children to FRES to see
their new classroom and to meet their new teacher. Students were so happy to see
classmates and friends.

Our first week together was busy with routine and expectation building. Classroom
teachers worked with their classes to build a space that was safe, welcoming, and
inclusive. All Responsive Classroom components are being worked on to ensure
students arrive at school each day feeling welcomed and experiencing a sense of
belonging. These routines and expectations set the conditions necessary for learning.



Recess time on a beautiful, sunny day.

COVID CASES:

The end of the week brought with it our first COVID positive case. On Friday, 9.3.21 at
approximately five o’clock, | was informed of a first grade student testing positive. All
procedures were followed for notifying the families of those in close contact with the
student. Additionally, a schoolwide announcement was sent informing all FRES
families. The remainder of the weekend was spent monitoring, informing, and checking
on families of other students who also tested positive on Saturday, Sunday, or Monday.
| have received emails from concerned parents relative to masking and its importance
when we have active cases. Mitigating efforts continue at FRES. Teachers have
classrooms arranged with the three foot spacing recommendation. Only one grade



level eats in the cafeteria at a time to provide as much space between classmates as
possible. Grades 1 and 3 eat their lunch in their classrooms. At recess, grade levels
take turns in specific areas of the playground. For example, grade 1 used the structure
and tar areas today and grade 2 used the field. Tomorrow they will switch locations.
Finally, each communication | have sent home has had a recommendation to mask with
the understanding the district plan still states masks are optional. With Nurse Katie
Balcom and the FRES staff, | will continue to monitor, inform, and support families
through this on-going issue.

Impact Team Meetings:

With the help of our school specials’ teachers, we have been able to find time in the
week for me to meet with one grade level each day for Impact Team Meetings. Impact
Meetings will last approximately 45 minutes. At this time we will work together as
grade level teams to analyze student work samples, work on curriculum, develop
common formative assessments, identify areas of need, and discuss and implement
best practices to instruction. While teachers are meeting with me, students will be
working on an additional PLTW (Project Lead the Way) lesson in science.

Arrival and Dismissal:

The first day of school was a bit bumpy for both arrival and dismissal. With a simple
tweak we have been able to move the busses and car lines more easily. There are
times when the car line is long and busses need to be able to depart. To manage this, |
direct drop off traffic every morning. This has proven effective. | would like to thank all
families for their cooperation during both arrival and dismissal. This level of cooperation
has helped to ensure students are as safe as possible.

Generous Treats for the Staff:




A big thanks to Frost This for the delicious and generous gift of cookies and cupcakes.
The Staff was so appreciative! The treats did not last very long:)

Assessment and Instruction:

The assessment calendar has been set.. Students in grades K and 1 are beginning
with the Heggerty screening. This screener focuses on phonological awareness skills.
We have started here to identify those students who struggle with phonemic awareness
(the ability to hear and manipulate sounds). This is a predictive skill in that those
students who are challenged by these skills in phonemic awareness have an increased
chance of becoming struggling readers. The STAR 360 assessment window opens on
September 13th and will close on September 24th. The results of all assessments will
be used to identify students who need intervention, additional practice opportunities, or
enrichment.

This concludes the September 2021 School Board report for Florence Rideout
Elementary School.

Sincerely,

Kathleen M. Chenette



Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District
School Administrative Unit #63

192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082
603-732-9227

Emily Stefanich, M.Ed
District Curriculum Coordinator

Curriculum Coordinator Report: September 14, 2021

Professional Learning

New Teacher Mentoring Program — New staff joined us for two extra
days in August for a crash course in all things WLC. The first day was
spent in training with me on proactive classroom management,
curriculum development and navigating the curriculum documents on
Google Drive. During the second day, new staff met with their
respective administrators to learn more about the day to day workings
of their schools and important day-to-day information. Finally, they
were able to meet with their fabulous mentors to get all of their
guestions answered and to dig into their new roles. Feedback from the
mentors and mentees was extremely positive, with new staff
mentioning how supportive and energetic the administration and staff
were in welcoming the new teachers to their roles, as well as how
informative the two days were.

A HUGE thank you goes out to everyone who made these two days successful including:
e lLaura Bujak, who coordinated the mentor training and mentoring program at WLC
e Linda Draper, who organized lunch for all of the new staff in the district
e Katie Gosselin, who trained our new staff on My Learning Plan / Frontline
e Stephanie Erikson, who trained the WLC staff on Power School and grading
e The building principals, who welcomed their new staff to their respective buildings
e The SAU staff, who came to talk about their roles to the new staff
e And finally, the mentors who are an incredible, valuable resource for our new staff!

Teacher Workshop Days — During our teacher workshop days at
both FRES and WLC | was able to meet with staff to go over
curriculum expectations for the coming year as well as resources
that are available for staff. We reviewed the three main
curriculum templates for competencies, scope and sequence and
unit plan, as well as discussed the shifts to the unit plan template.
Staff are beginning the work of curriculum writing within each
respective building. Based on staff feedback, | am creating a
collection of resources to support curriculum writing this year.

During our meetings, | also sent out a survey for staff who are
interested in being a member of the Professional Development
Committee or Curriculum Committee. | received a lot of interest
across schools and grade/subject areas, and look forward to
convening those committees in the coming weeks.

The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status,
<sextial arientation. sender identitv ar marital statiis in its administration of ediicational nragsrams. activities or emnlovment nractice
Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District provides a safe and educational environment that promotes student exploration, critical thinking and
responsible citizenship.




Data & Assessment

District Assessment Overview — In collaboration with the building principals and staff, we have created
a District Assessment Overview document that is shared with staff across the district. It includes a
calendar of district assessments, a procedure for reviewing the data and creating action steps in a timely
fashion, an overview of responsibilities for testing as well as information about how assessment results
will be used. This creates a clear plan for how we will utilize data this year to improve student success
and evaluate our instruction. The document is attached to my report in the subsequent pages.

STAR Fall Administration — Teachers have received training and are prepared to administer the STAR
Reading and Math tests to all students grades 1-8, as well as the STAR Early Literacy test for our
Kindergarten students. Our fall assessment window for STAR is September 13t™-24" with the goal that all
tests are complete by the 24%™. This data will provide us with a benchmark for where students are at and
what skills teachers can target this year.

Data Presentation — We are in the process of synthesizing the data from last year and will create a
presentation for the next board meeting. This presentation will include relevant data from the 2020-
2021 school year. | recognize this is later in the year than you would normally expect to see the data, but
we are working diligently to disaggregate the data to more closely identify impacts on learning from
COVID, including remote instruction.

The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status,
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice.



District Assessment Overview
2021-2022 Assessment Calendar

released

Month —
September October November December January February March April May June
Assessment |
Fall Assessment | *Data Analysis Winter *Data Analysis Spring Assessment Window
STAR Window Cycle Assessment Cycle
Early Literacy Window May 23rd-June 9th
(K-1), Reading September *Data Analysis Cycle
(2-8), Math (K-8) 13-24th January
10th-21st
Interim Assessment Window
*Data Analysis Cycle can follow any given interim assessments
Skt Summative Assessment Window
Assessment
(3-8,11) Official Dates TBD - Tentatively May
*Data Analysis Cycle happens over the summer or as soon as data is
released
PSAT 10/13 *Data Analysis 3/23 *Data Analysis
Grade 11 Cycle Grade 10 Cycle
(9th/10th/11th) Grade 9
SAT 3/23 *Data Analysis
(11th) Cycle
. Assessment Window
Dynamic
Lea(rgu:!%il:ﬁaps March 14th-June 10th - Official Dates TBD cale
E du[():ation) *Data Analysis Cycle happens over the summer or as soon as data is

Updated August 26th, 2021




Data Analysis Cycle

Assessments are given

l

District Instructional Leadership Team meets to review high level data compiled by Curriculum Coordinator and create action plan
using data discussion protocol

!

Building Principals take data and actions to building faculty meetings / leadership meetings using data discussion protocols

!

Teachers reflect on school / grade level / individual trends and create action plan to adjust instruction accordingly with measurable
outcomes and assessment / data points

l

Building Principals monitor plans and follow-up with teachers
Curriculum Coordinator offers support for instruction as needed

!

District Instructional Leadership Team reconvenes and follows up on action plan

l

O Repeat

Data-Informed
Education Cycle

Sample Data Discussion Protocols:

Data Driven Dialogue
Atlas Protocol
Results Driven Protocol

More can be found at National School Reform Faculty Protocols List

Updated August 26th, 2021


https://www.nsrfharmony.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/10/data_driven_dialogue_0.pdf
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1jCvxPhejW3lx4D9ZYxdS2bvuXdgdvZjh/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1dmSvCc9fFgJlPpbrCO8AEiv25m-X5zqq/view?usp=sharing
https://nsrfharmony.org/protocols/

Roles and Responsibilities

Responsibilities

e Develop and manage an assessment program
e Seek professional staff input on evaluation of assessment tools as well as selection of new tools
Superintendent e Provide School Board with an ongoing evaluation of the assessment program, and will provide regular reports to the Board showing the effectiveness of
the curriculum on improving student performance
e Evaluate instructional programs and assessments annually in accordance with the School Board’s policies
e Attend relevant assessment trainings
e Provides relevant training and support before testing windows
o e Create district assessment calendar, with input from key stakeholders, that is shared with instructional staff before the start of the school year
District Assessment . .
. . e Compile, analyze, summarize and report student assessment data to the School Board annually
Coordinator (Curriculum ) L : . ) : : . :
. e Isresponsible for scores of individual students and interpretations of test scores, including ensuring that scores are made available to appropriate
Coordinator) o R . ; .
personnel within the school in which the student is enrolled and to the parents/legal guardians as provided by law
e Organize communication with parents and guardians regarding assessment results
e Along with Director of Technology, maintains and updates rosters for students for accuracy
e Attend relevant assessment trainings
e Provides relevant training and support before testing windows
Director of Technology e Support software and hardware during testing windows
e Supports District Assessment Coordinator in compiling assessment data
e Along with District Assessment Coordinator, maintains and updates rosters for students for accuracy
e Monitors testing procedures, including the distribution and collection of test materials, test security, use of test results and testing dates
Building Principal e Coordinate with special education case managers to ensure all accommodations and modifications are provided to students with documented IEPs
e Available for support as needed during testing
Building Assessment e Coordinates with Special Education team to ensure all accommodations and modifications are accurately reflected in the testing platform in accordance
Coordinator with documented IEPs and 504 Plans
e Supports building principal in monitoring testing procedures, including the distribution and collection of test materials, test security, use of test results
FRES/LCS - Tammy Cargill and testing dates
MS - Alice Bartoldus e Available for support as needed during testing
HS - Amanda Kovaliv e \Verifies roster accuracy and provides feedback to District Assessment Coordinator and Director of Technology

Updated August 26th, 2021




Assessment Results

Per School Board Policy ILBA - Assessment of Educational Programs, assessment results will be analyzed and used with other data for the following purposes:
e To identify individual student strengths and weaknesses in skill development;

To diagnose strengths and weaknesses of groups;

To individualize instruction;

To report progress to parents;

To select curriculum materials;

To set the pace of instruction;

To select methods of instruction;

To counsel students;

To help determine revisions needed in the curriculum

References:

New Hampshire Statewide Assessment System, New Hampshire Department of Education

Using Student Achievement Data to Support Instructional Decision Making, National Center for Education Evaluation and Regional Assistance
Driven by Data: A Practical Guide to Improve Instruction by Paul Bambrick-Santos

Updated August 26th, 2021



Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District
192 Forest Road
Lyndeborough, NH 03082
603-732-9227

SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER STIPEND

Date: Fiscal Year:

This form shall serve as notice that | request the Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District payroll
department to:

|:| Issue my yearly school board member stipend of $100.

|:| Withhold the issue of my school board member current year stipend.

Name of School Board Member:

Signature of School Board Member Date

For Payroll Use

Account Number: Pay Period:

9/7/2021



Enrollment 2021-2022
Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District

Grades First Day Sept. Oct. 1-an Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan.  Feb. March April YEW

O 0N OO Ul B W NI
I
[EEN

A e
N R O
pDd W
Blr N

Total 574 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

LCS 54 #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE!  #VALUE! #VALUE!  #VALUE! #VALUE!
FRES 232 #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE!  #VALUE! #VALUE!  #VALUE! #VALUE!
MS 129 #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE!  #VALUE! #VALUE!  #VALUE! #VALUE!
HS 159 #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE!  #VALUE! #VALUE!  #VALUE! #VALUE!



OCooNOOULTL A WN -

WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE
SCHOOL BOARD MEETING
Tuesday, August 24, 2021
Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative M/H School

6:30 p.m.

The videoconferencing link was published several places including on the meeting agenda.

Present: Alex LoVerme, Brianne Lavallee, Jonathan Vanderhoof, Matt Mannarino, Jim Kofalt (6:32pm), Charlie Post and Paul
White

Superintendent Peter Weaver, Business Administrator Kristie LaPlante (7:12pm), Principals Sarah Edmunds and Kathleen
Chenette, Director of Student Support Services Ned Pratt, Technology Director Jonathan Bouley, and Clerk Kristina Fowler

L CALL TO ORDER
Chairman LoVerme called the meeting to order at 6:30pm.

11 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

1I1. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA
Superintendent Weaver reported the following adjustments, addition of new hires, nominations, a resignation, a nonpublic student
matter and requested to move the Business Administrator’s Report later in the evening as Ms. LaPlante will be late. Mr. Post
added a discussion regarding new special education legislation.

A MOTION was made by Mr. Vanderhoof and SECONDED by Mr. Mannarino to accept the adjustments to the agenda.
Voting: five ayes, one abstention from Chairman LoVerme, motion carried.

V. PUBLIC COMMENTS
The public comment section of the agenda was read.

A parent spoke regarding the back to school plan and masks. She has concern about masks being optional especially for the
elementary students and the updated CDC guidelines.

Ms. Andrea Petrone, teacher, spoke of the school looking amazing. She introduced a couple of members in from the WLCTA
who were attending. She spoke of wanting to form a good relationship with collaboration. She thanked Superintendent Weaver
for planning a fabulous day; it was motivating, and just what you want a first day back to be. She spoke of having school open all
year last year and that the teachers did an amazing job. She hopes for continued collaboration this year. She thanked the Board for
their time and everything they do.

Mr. Eddie Anzalone, Lyndeborough resident, spoke regarding masks wanting to keep them optional. We talk about a safe
environment but it only constitutes one side of the argument. He voiced concern for kids who have anxiety, are claustrophobic,
self-esteem problems and wearing a mask can cause issues for them. At this point, we are at the understanding that parents can
make the best decision, he does not think there was any parent who would not mask their child if needed but we are not at that
point now. Leaving it up to parents to make the best decision for their child. The inclusion argument does not work unless you
will include everyone.

Ms. Alyssa Lavoie spoke regarding the CDC guidelines recently issued. She expressed they will help you. She spoke of the
district’s draft plan and notes regarding face masks, level 2 is the same as level 3 with masks being worn outside; she questions
why that would change from the first draft; it is not in line with the DHHS (Dept. Health and Human Services) guidelines.

Mr. Shawn MacFadzen, Lyndeborough, expressed that there are children in our school system that the only place they are getting
a meal is in school. He spoke that he works for NH Fish and Game and is in the community and knows what is going on. Our
school food program is important and if students are remote, they are not getting that meal. He spoke of a drugs being a problem
in this county and state; people make sacrifices for the drugs rather than the food for their children. For some students the only
place they feel loved and welcomed is in school and they need to be in the classroom with teachers. Some only escape from
physical abuse and/or mental abuse when in school. He expressed that we are worried about COVID and death and you have 1 in
a million chance from dying from COVID but 6.6 million children are referred to child protective services each year and that is



59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89

90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116

the conversation we really need to talk about. According to protective services, there is a report every 10 seconds of abuse. We
need to talk about having kids back in school. Masks need to be the parent’s option and we need to protect kids. Keep them in
school and with teachers.

Ms. Melissa Knight questioned as far as contact tracing, will families be notified of who is a close contact. Mr. White responded
it depends on if we have masks or not. Ms. Lavallee added it will determined by DHHS; a school nurse and teacher will determine
who was close to a student and for how long, were they masked or not. There are a number of factors that go into making that
determination. Ms. Knight asked if students are isolating what are they doing as far as school goes. Chairman LoVerme answered
there is not a plan for that yet.

Ms. Laura Manning, Wilton questioned if we have the results of the survey before we start arguing about masks. Chairman

LoVerme voiced it will be gone over later in the meeting. Ms. Manning spoke that students need to be in school, they need

normalcy and not to wear a mask. She spoke that the suicide rate is higher and during flu season, we do not have them wear
masks and that affects more kids than COVID so why are we now.

Mr. Geoffrey Allen, Lyndeborough spoke regarding the DHHS report for back to school and notes there is no remote learning
option. They talked about identifying clusters, evaluating classrooms, isolating and bringing kids back in. He added we also
talked about tying it into demographics. He notes I have heard talk about Hillsborough County, and this does not represent Wilton
and Lyndeborough; we want to look at it locally. Back to school, no remote, and no masks.

Ms. Alyssa Lavoie questioned if anyone participated in the Dr. Chan live call. Response was school nurse Cathleen Bertoncini did
and she was part of putting the district plan together.

Mr. Adam Lavallee, Lyndeborough expressed if you can’t force a kid to wear a mask you can’t force them to wear anything. He
is stunned that the NHSBA is on the agenda again. He reviewed we created a line-by-line budget, the public was free to remove
items from it and the fees for this were included; why are we wasting time talking about it. Canceling of the NHSBA is ridiculous
when you look at why these school board members want to cancel it, because NHSBA lobbied against bills that defund public
education, which is stunning in a district where everyone is sick of their taxes going up. To cancel membership because of that is
a very bad reason and a bad move for the district.

Chairman LoVerme called out all the phone numbers and names joined in the meeting asking if they wanted to comment.

Mr. Dennis Golding apologized to the Board for not being able to attend tonight. He expressed he had every intention to be
present this evening but family obligations prevented him from doing so. He hopes we can continue with whatever they are going
to do later on tonight.

V. BOARD CORRESPONDENCE
a. Reports
i. Business Administrator’s Report
Ms. LaPlante gave an overview of her report, which included there is a lot going on. She highlighted the facilities team who is
doing a fantastic job. Ms. Erin Smith is the new Food Service Director and has been working on getting up to speed with training
and hiring staff; she is currently fully staffed. The bulk of last week Ms. LaPlante been working on grants specifically she
discussed the grant efficiencies. The district received a lot of COVID money. She reviewed the allotments. Last week it was
confirmed that well over $200,000 is still sitting in the general fund and as she indicated in her report, it will create a delay in
getting the DOE 25 completed. She knows what needs to be done and it is just going through the process now. The DOE 25 goes
to the DRA to file taxes; she has asked for an extension through Sept. 30 but intends to have it much sooner as to not delay the
towns in setting the tax rate. There was a grant audit completed by the NH DOE Bureau of Federal Compliance which did not
return any significant findings but there was no follow up on their supplemental requests for information and has put the district in
jeopardy of having to pay back the funds. She has been working on getting us back in compliance to make sure we don’t have to
give back COVID money. She spoke of attending the Budget Committee meeting and they are moving forward with a needs
based budget, which is different from in the past. She and the Superintendent will meet with Principals, Dept. heads etc. regarding
this. She confirmed there is no fine for filing for the extension. At the last meeting, she spoke of the use for ESSER 3 money and
doing a survey. The survey was completed with responses. The funds will be used in line with special education and building
administration for loss of instructional time. It was filed on Monday and complies with the grant as well.
ii. Director of Student Support Services Report
Mr. Pratt reports today was a great opening day with teachers and staff. As you can imagine we are busy the rest of the week. As
of this morning, he is still looking to replace a school psychologist and a paraprofessional. He is trying to come up with a solution
and will keep the Board informed. It was a great summer with ESY; there were about 53 students and there were a variety of



117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
l61
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177

178

activities. It was a huge success. Preschool and Pre-k are filling up with more students coming in and being identified. There were
a couple of “move-ins” and evaluations; we need to make determinations. We will be pretty full by early fall. The SPED
department was busy all summer long, budget preparations, finalizing grants and getting contracts done. He notes it has been a joy
working with Ms. LaPlante; she is helpful and moves the process along. He reports we are working to get the data the Board
requested on “move-ins” and once it is all complete he will report on this. A question was raised if we have a MS counselor in the
building currently (as the psychologist position is vacant). Mr. Pratt confirmed we do but are checking to see of that covers the
state requirement for the building and are we looking other places too.

iii. Director of Technology’s Report
Mr. Bouley reported that since we started the beginning of the year, 130 new Chromebooks have come in; he is working with
staff to get their laptops and deploy it all. He notes they focus on the help desk tickets, there are 55 open and 35 of those are still
part of the original 72. Some of these were over a year old and is trying to get that down to a smaller window so response will be
faster. They have been doing site surveys, infrastructures and find out where the improvements are needed, what is working and
clean it up and replace things that are not working. There is a lot of missing standard operating procedures, which causes issues
for the staff. He has a few projects started and finishing the offsite back up, emergency system and cybersecurity needs. He
confirmed the new equipment is new and not refurbished and had been ordered before he started. They were to replace end of life
or broken beyond repair computers. The replaced equipment was taken out and recycled. Mr. Bouley voiced that he and
Superintendent Weaver spoke about the Technology Plan being expired in 2017 and had not been updated; this is not a good way
to go about it. He spoke of having multiple pieces of equipment that do the same thing. They have a student intern for the summer
and he is working on keeping him for the year in an internship program. He notes the department consists of 2 people, Mr. Bouley
and Dan LaSala and now intern Shawn Bishop. Mr. Bishop has been helping them prepare all the laptops and is hoping to keep
this going after Mr. Bishop graduates. Mr. Bouley noted he started out in an internship program and it is a powerful program. A
question was raised regarding what an average help desk ticket looks like. Mr. Bouley responded, it can be a broken projector,
someone doesn’t know their password or how to do something, it can be defective equipment in their room these are common and
comes back to the smart boards and projectors; each one is a little different and it is hard to stabilize. Superintendent Weaver
spoke in favor of the internship even if it is an hour after school or during study hall; the student gets experience and helps the
district at minimal cost. Our IT Director gets bogged down dealing with things like passwords and that is where a student comes
in. They are really good at it. We have to promote it; figure out what kids into and find a way to make it work. Chairman
LoVerme noted the paper world is getting more obsolete and he hopes we are not falling behind the computer age for these kids.

VI.NHSBA MEMBERSHIP
Superintendent Weaver expressed we just need to decide. He recommends continuing membership. Mr. Vanderhoof spoke that he
has said before and is saying again to contact the attorney, as she was the one who advised them on how to do it properly; it may
cost an hour of her time. He suggests doing this. He also notes it is stated in the General Assurances we will do it properly and
this is a simple solution. It was noted Ms. LaPlante had provided some recommendations at the last meeting. Ms. LaPlante spoke
that Merrimack uses PDIP; the funds are segregated and you can control which funds get into that account. Currently, NHSBA
does not take electronic payments. She confirms she did reach out to Merrimack but the Business Administrator did not call her
back. She spoke a colleague at the Pubic Investment Pool. Mr. Vanderhoof expressed we need to call the attorney who advised
Merrimack and settle it. Mr. Post spoke about the Board receiving correspondence back from NHSBA regarding the resolution
they submitted. He read the correspondence which indicated to NHSBA’s knowledge there is only one school board that
segregates funds for NHSBA dues; he adds they said it themselves and how do we know what portion is for lobbying. If we have
a $10,000 bill (for example), how much of that is for lobbying. Superintendent added he spoke to them and there is no ala cart,
there is one membership and monies goes into one “pool”. He notes we can follow up with the lawyer and get a determination and
see if lines up with Merrimack. Chairman LoVerme expressed we need to know tomorrow. Ms. Lavallee urged that we take
action on it tonight and does not want to let any more time lapse. It was noted they work for us and why are they not responding.
Discussion continued. Chairman LoVerme expressed we have determined we will just pay it.

A MOTION was made by Mr. Mannarino and SECONDED by Mr. White to pay the NHSBA membership.

Discussion continued, it was asked if we want it paid as we normally do and response was yes. Mr. Vanderhoof reiterated it is a
simple answer; it is call the lawyer. He adds we don’t need to make a motion; we approved the payment and need to call the
lawyer. Superintendent will call the attorney tomorrow and put it to rest. He will let the Board know and we will pay it; we will be
the second district to get it right.

Mr. Mannarino WITHDREW his MOTION and Mr. White withdrew the second.

VIIL. DRAFT BACK TO SCHOOL PLAN
i. Use of Lockers
Superintendent reported the survey had 270 respondents; it was based on the honor system. In order to make it anonymous which

he felt was important it allowed people who know technology respond more than once. He trusts that everyone responded just
once. This was in impressive high number of responses; which resulted in an overwhelming 90% believe if masks are optional,
their kids will come to school. A member in the audience indicated they never got it. Superintendent left the survey active until
Sunday, which was beyond the deadline. The email addresses were pulled from PowerSchool, he spoke of the importance of



179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232

keeping the student information system up to date (emails addresses, phone numbers etc.), and if it was not correct the survey
may not have reached you. The other question on the survey was if masks were mandatory for students, would your student come
to school. About 20% indicated they wouldn’t send their student to school. He notes parents have a serious concern; the majority
are open to having masks optional and let the parents make the decision. We will continue to teach social distancing etc., all the
mitigating factors we did last year. The survey did not ask about remote. Some parents have spoken about remote learning; the
DHHS has been clear about having in person learning, kids need to be with other kids and with teachers, it is a fact. He spoke of
some students thriving in an independent learning environment but most of our kids do not. It is a struggle for teachers too and it
takes away from the kids who are learning in person. He reports, it looks like masks should be optional and no one disputed the
data. We had a conversation regarding the thresholds; that is the question he has, if we use the data how do we use it, do we set a
number and does it trigger a set of things or do we let some arbitrary number do that. He adds the teacher’s union did a survey of
staff and they are concerned for health and safety but given the data they are open to masks optional with where we are with the
levels but we need to pay close attention to that and act quickly. If we have to go full masks at some point, we will make that
decision but it doesn’t mean it is forever given the data we have. We may have to make that difficult decision and he thinks we
are all OK with that. Ms. Lavallee suggested under isolate, quarantine section, suggests it be changed to follow recommendation
of Dept. Health, as that is what guides us anyway. A question was raised if 10% of parents decide not to send their kids to school
what are their options for education. Superintendent recommends VLACS; it is a statewide K-12 program at no cost to us. We had
VLACS facilitators at WLC and have teachers that could help. He believes in VLACS, it is a virtual learning scenario, it is all
remote and they have certified teachers teaching it. There will be groups of students who need to access the building with critical
needs and without it will not be successful. He recommends finding resources in our building to help those kids like special
education students who need direct support. He is not recommending a remote option. It was suggested to see a more flushed out
plan with VLACS as it was not an option last year for some, as they had no resources available. Chairman LoVerme expressed to
be clear- it is in school learning or out of school, no remote option. Superintendent to call VLACS and ask what their capacity and
access is. Discussion was had regarding the 9-week period. Superintendent spoke of that being the best time for transition as it
lines up with the marking period and is a natural break for students and teachers. We can cycle these transitions with 9 weeks or
semester breaks; the 9 weeks is an arbitrary number and the goal is to reduce disruption. Discussion was had regarding there
being a lot of children in the district who do not attend our school for whatever reason they choose to not enroll and it is not
incumbent upon us to make arrangements for their children; it is not in the back to school plan but was in the welcome back letter.
Discussion was had regarding lockers and wanting them available for kids. The discussion included the need to have mitigating
measures in place; there are still students in the 6™ grade who cannot be vaccinated. Ms. Lavallee spoke of concern as a nurse for
20 years that it is not an appropriate thing to do from an infection control standpoint. She questions what is the medical data that
justifies making the change. It is a public health issue and we want as many students back as can. The more we take away
(mitigating factors) the higher the risk is regarding transmission that is how infection control works. Discussion continued. A
question was raised if a parent can request a locker. Superintendent agreed but wants to keep this to 6™ grade only and spaced out.
Discussion was had regarding the intention behind the plans different levels and whom makes the decision, does passage of this
plan authorize someone other than the Board to move us from level to level. Superintendent spoke that we have to come to a
decision collectively otherwise he is looking at the data himself and deciding and he is more comfortable with that being done
collectively. He would need to update the data every 3 days, we could make it available on our website and not have to dig around
for it, track it locally, and nationally. At some point, we have to make a decision if we choose to move a level. Superintendent
confirmed he is pulling data from DHHS. Discussion continued with concern regarding any policy or plan that does not have the
Board take a vote. Ultimately as a Board, we own the decision and it is not clear if this is delegating decision making to the
Superintendent and as a Board, we ought to not do that. It was confirmed that regarding level of transmission, it says
Hillsborough County, but that does not include Manchester or Nashua. It was noted it is hard to get a pulse on what is happening
in the community; we don’t have students in school right now and these data points are tricky. A question was raised how many
days it would take to hold an emergency meeting if things change quickly as students would still be in school until the Board
meeting was held. It was confirmed 24-hour notice is required and parents are in charge; they have the choice to keep their
children home. Discussion was had including it is unlikely to see a spike like this overnight, we are able to close school down for
snow days for a day or two, this is not a situation where we have to hand over the decision to someone else, it is handing over the
decision to the data not someone else and there are a lot of disagreements regarding the data. Discussion continued regarding
making a decision based on the levels or the Board coming together to make a decision. Ms. Lavallee spoke regarding masks
being used as standard infection control practice. It does not significantly increase your CO2 using it. We can make all sort of
assumptions, we don’t know yet because the data has not been collected. Her opinion is masks help reduce spread of infection.
The Corona Virus does not travel on its own; it attaches itself to droplets and is considered to be a droplet spread virus. Her
opinion is that masks help reduce the instance of infection. She is confident as the data changes we may need to move back to
masks and to say we have to revisit it every time is concerning and upsetting because the data about masks is, it does stop the



233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259

260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289

spread of infection; not 100% but it is a mitigating standard. Discussion continued including an earlier point had less to do with
arguing the efficacy of masks and more to do with many facts out there and based on what you believe you will come up with
conclusions. Superintendent confirms the plan was for the Board to give guidance and revisit it along the way at the same dates
agreed upon in the plan from June. Superintendent reviewed what he has heard from the discussion to be, they don’t want
thresholds, (he agrees they are arbitrary), they don’t want levels and remove remote language from across all levels unless the
Governor says we are in a State of Emergency which is a different conversation. It was noted there was not discussion about
elementary students. It was noted this is a district plan. Discussion was had regarding food services and it was questioned what
are we doing. Principal Chenette spoke that she needs to have the direction relative to spacing. She doesn’t want students eating at
10:30 in the morning. Superintendent questioned so far we have masks optional to start across all schools, is that right; no
objection heard. No remote unless we have to go full remote. It was noted, so we want to have a choice about masks but no choice
to keep them home with remote. It will be VLACS K-12. It was noted there has been discussion about thresholds and whether it is
trigger a meeting or a response; we need to establish some criteria. At what number do we say we have to have a meeting to
discuss moving to another phase? Superintendent spoke that it is difficult to tell the hospital rates as it includes places like
Concord. It was noted to that point; it is difficult to get a handle on that because we interact with people in Manchester, Nashua,
Concord, Keene and people travel to other states for various reasons. To be hyper-focused on local data is shortsighted.
Superintendent reviews he welcomes not making the decision on his own. It is difficult to take a threshold and make a decision
and not have a discussion with the community. Once you go down that road, it is hard to come back from that. We want to be sure
we make it right. He reviews what he hears the Board wanting, no remote, masks optional, support families who want masks,
lockers for grade 6, no levels but come together on a regular basis or emergency basis and make a decision. Ms. Lavallee
expressed, we are not providing enough direction to the Superintendent. We need to look at the plan and decide what to change
take out remote and offer VLACS. Mr. Vanderhoof spoke that this is something the families will do on their own or is the district
obligated to help. They can call the state; we are not specifically involved in making the decision for families. Superintendent
confirms VLACS has rolling admissions, some sign up in the middle of a quarter and they need to be engaged at some level. If
they use VLACS, they are not considered our students. It was noted we don’t want to lose our students. There was a brief
discussion regarding VLACS and supporting students and not having teachers do dual platforms. It was suggested to see if there
are ways to access ESSER funds to have additional resources. Superintendent will find out from the DOE if we get any “credit”
for students taking VLACS but are still involved in school somehow. A brief discussion was had regarding changes to the plan.

A MOTION was made by Ms. Lavallee and SECONDED by Mr. White to accept this draft with changes to take out remote, taking
out the isolated quarantine e section and adding Dept. of Public Health and revisit it on Sept. 28, 2021 for further discussion.*

Mr. Vanderhoof noted if you want to keep in the levels, it brings us right back to who makes the decision.

Ms. Lavallee AMENDS her MOTION adding to make this the plan as deemed by the School Board to carry out and the School
Board will revisit on Sept. 28, 2021, Mr. White SECONDED. *

Discussion continued. Ms. Lavallee confirmed take out remote and leaving in facemasks at level 2. Discussion was had there is
concern and a need to wait until they have a document that is crystal clear and we can all read it, even if they don’t have it before
school starts. Discussion was had of what trips us to move to level 2. Superintendent noted it would be hard pressed to go to level
2 if the kids are in quarantine and we are monitoring for symptoms. Discussion was had that it is not clear how the matrix is
working and if we have masks. Superintendent expressed he is hearing a motion when we get to level 2 we have mandatory masks
but he is also hearing no masks unless the Governor says mandatory masks. He asks for some clarity on how to update the plan.
He does not except us to jump to level 2 in the next few days. Ms. Lavallee noted she is keeping her motion on the table. There
needs to be a clear plan for parents. Mr. Vanderhoof is looking for clarity on the matrix and if the motion passes what that means
for us. She went through the matrix by example. It was noted the examples are confusing. It was suggested to have a clear plan, as
this is not. It was suggested to have a plan that was relevant. Ms. Lavallee went through the changes to the plan; under
instructional model-Level 2-remove “remote option”, we will not be providing that, under face coverings, cross out outdoor at all
schools and add “outdoor optional”, under isolate and quarantine take out that section and put in add “follow the
recommendations of NH Dept. of Public Health”. Mr. Post voiced concern with the plan. Discussion was had regarding the
threshold for absenteeism; this is not clear. It was noted thresholds will be kept in until we meet again. Chairman checked for
members online, none heard.

*Voting: four ayes; three nays from Mr. Post, Mr. Vanderhoof and Mr. Kofalt, (Chairman LoVerme voted to break the tie of 3-3)
motion carried.

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENTS
Ms. Darlene Anzalone spoke requesting lockers for students who play sports. Superintendent agrees we can find a place for their
bags.



290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351

Ms. Lavoie comment that she appreciates what Ms. Lavallee was trying to do with having a plan in place but we are shooting
ourselves in the foot. Not one person on the school board has referred to the new guidelines and not one administrator was on the
call on the 11™ that released the guidelines. She raised concern that it is not sufficient going into our 2" year of COVID. She
questioned how many actually reviewed it and why we are building a matrix based off of last year’s DHHS guidance. She notes
that includes counties, it also includes Hudson, Milford, Pelham and we are nothing like those communities; it makes no sense.
She thanked them for eliminating the remote option. She suggests no less than 2 board members be on the call with DHHS. She
adds it is disheartening that there was no reference to the new guidance. She understands we have to have mitigation, viruses are
not new, we had flu and this is not any different. Kids are not at high risk, whom are we trying to protect. She spoke of her
daycare facility and she does not mandate masks, no social distancing for 0-5 year olds; she works with DHHS. That is the
guidelines they say to have; have someone work with them based on clusters, how many cases, and to look at your local
community. There is a ton of information and none has been talked about. She is frustrated something has been voted on with old
guidelines when new ones were put out and you voted to put it in place. She appreciates the intent but doesn’t think it will get us
to where we are trying to go.

Mr. MacFadzen expressed this meeting was chaotic. He questioned how much the NHSBA membership is and whom does it
really benefit; why do we keep arguing about it. He raised concern of not understanding the whole “9-week” thing. He voiced his
kids ate way to early last year, at 10:30am. He expressed being confused on what was just voted on. Is there a trigger that puts us
at mandatory mask? Chairman LoVerme responded we won’t know anything until school opens. Superintendent spoke according
to the matrix we are using these data points. We are mask optional with low incident in school and substantial in community. Mr.
MacFadzen responded I think we need to focus on data points of what is in school and wait for the State to determine mandatory
masks. It doesn’t make sense to make kids wear masks but when on the field they are not wearing them or at Market Basket. He
asks why are we not waiting for the Governor to make that call for us. He also notes can we do something about the audio; we
can’t hear back here.

People online noted in the chat the audio was not good throughout the meeting. Attempts were made to reconcile this.

Ms. Petrone, WLCTA co-president thanked the Board for going back and forth and taking the time. She understands it is not easy.
Teachers are legitimately making it happen and doing it day after day and seeing it, feeling it and watching the kids. She
appreciates the plan whether in draft form or not. The back to school plan has other things that we as teachers need to know we
are doing; air quality, hand washing and cleaning. The reason we stayed open last year was because we had a plan. Teachers like
predictability and to know what is expected of us. She notes we appreciate we have guidance; there are other issues we have to
pay attention to as well.

Mr. Allen thanked the Board for some good questions tonight; it is obvious you all care. Last year he personally felt they handed
the administration and teachers a crap situation and they dealt with it the best way they could but it wasn’t fair and they knocked
it out of the park. He is disappointed that you as a school board couldn’t hand the teachers and administrators a plan. You handed
it off to Mr. Weaver and you owe it to the school, the teachers and to us as parents who elected you to make decisions to put
together a plan. You have DHHS plan, they laid it out and you put together a plan based on arbitrary numbers and based on a 9-
week plan. You don’t even know what you voted on tonight. He appreciates and recognizes you have a hard job but please let’s
just settle this so we can start school in less than a week.

Ms. Manning commented this is like watching a tennis match. People are trying to follow what was taken out, and scratched out;
can we read it so we know what was voted on.

Ms. Knight asked if a child tests positive and they were wearing a mask does it change anything regarding the contact tracing.
Response, it will go to DHHS. She questioned why masks are mandatory on the bus and not in school. Response, it is a
transportation mandate. She questioned if classrooms are able to provide the 3-foot minimum space in the classroom and should it
be part of the guidelines. Response was that is when we would have to move furniture etc. around if we couldn’t meet that.

Ms. Karen Nixon, Lyndeborough questioned if we do not have the 3-foot minimum, do we have any mitigation in place; we took
masks off, no clear plan on sanitation etc. Response was this does have a long list of mitigations. The Board previously voted in
June masks are optional but a number of other protocol items remained in place. It was noted the teachers didn’t sound like there
were. Response, we have air filters all around the schools, sanitation is in place, there are a lot of things that most of us would not
object to. It was added the handwashing, cleaning protocols are in place, we try to do the 3-foot spacing in all instances and if not,
due to class size, we may have to move them to another room. Ms. Nixon noted she read that Manchester has mandated masks
with a parent opt out option. This gives another potential concept. She spoke of peer pressure with girls and boys and it is
something to consider along with the having a mandate with an opt out option.

Ms. Sarah Chadzinski, Lyndeborough spoke that she appreciates the energy and work you put into all of this. One thing it is
important to consider is community transmission. Our County is in substantial now, something to be aware of going into this
week. The DHHS talks about how important masks are and for prevention. Science is changing and right now this is what we



352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406
407

408
409
410
411

have and we make decisions on what we have now what is the best we can do to protect our community and our children.
Important preventable measures so we don’t have to shut down; she is concerned about this. We are talking numbers in school
and in the community. She taught school outside 5 days a week last year because she knows how important in person learning is.
We are not in an isolated community; not everyone works or lives in this community. Mr. Weaver lives in Concord. These are
things we need to keep in mind. Not everyone got the survey and she is concerned not everyone is represented. She knows a
number of people who have watched this mask debate and watched the disrespect that has gone around about this. It is incredibly
painful to watch this happening in our community and painful to see that we are not thinking of our children and the students who
needs to be in school for food service, or special services. They need us to provide it for them. She hopes we consider this moving
forward. She spoke of VLACS and keeping kids connected. VLACS requires the student has a device and an internet connection.
She did a lot of tutoring with kids last year because they had a hard time with VLACS; what are we doing to support those kids.
She is not here to represent just the 10%; we need to consider all our student body and what are we doing for that 10-20% because
she didn’t hear an answer to that.

Chairman called out to those online to ask if they wanted to comment.
Mr. Lavallee commented he believes an earlier comment was a violation of the first amendment.

Mr. Jeff Jones had spoken at the last meeting. He is concerned and does not feel safe sending his children to school that are
unvaccinated at this time and will homeschool. He spoke of his neighbor who passed away from COVID, it went through that
family, the wife, the younger daughter and people ask who are we trying to protect. We are trying to protect our community. We
need to think about that. At the last meeting, there was a comment made by a school board member about somehow
circumventing the mask rules on the bus and he wants the Board to know whether that was a joke or not he finds it disturbing that
we will think about circumventing the rules that ask us to wear masks.

IX.SCHOOL BOARD VACANCY
Superintendent reported this was discussed at the last meeting and according to the RSA, it the remaining school board members
representing the same town or towns as the prior member are who vote to appoint. There are 4 candidates and 3 indicated they
would attend and one is online. It was noted the “at large” members can vote to appoint. It was noted the district policy should be
updated to reflect the RSA. The Chair thanked the candidates for stepping up and called upon Ms. Stephanie Kirsch who was
present and introduced herself and answered questions. The Chair spoke about wanting to have the candidates coming in and
speak and spoke about the time commitment as a board member. Ms. Lakisha Davidson was called upon with no reply. Mr. Dave
Comley was called upon and was present, introduced himself and answered questions. Mr. Dennis Golding was called upon, was
online, introduced himself (current budget committee member) and answered questions. Each candidate also spoke of what they
felt they would bring to the Board as a member and why they want to serve.

Chair reported there are 3 nominees, members to nominate candidates. He asked for how many in favor of Stephanie Kirsch, no
nomination was heard.

Mpr. Kofalt nominated Dave Comley to be appointed to the School Board; Mr. Mannarino seconded the nomination. *
Mpr. White nominated Dennis Golding to be appointed to the School Board; Ms. Lavallee seconded the nomination. **
*Voting, appointment of Dave Comley: one aye from Mr. Kofalt, nomination fails

**Voting; appointment of Dennis Golding: three ayes from Mr. Mannarino, Ms. Lavallee, Mr. White, nomination passes.

Chair thanked all the candidates and encouraged them to sign up for elections in March. He congratulated Mr. Golding on being
appointed to the Board. Mr. Golding will need to be sworn in and notify the Budget Committee.

X. SCHOOL BOARD WORKSHOP
The Board discussed the purpose of the workshop and possible dates. Concern was raised regarding the productivity of the

workshop during this time and perhaps it should be done later. Superintendent noted his experience is these are done in the
summer for a half or full day. It was decided September 7 will be a workshop for the group to meet and set an agenda and Mr.
Post will put together possible topics. This meeting will be 2 hours without a facilitator. A brief discussion was had regarding the
Board self-evaluation and if it should be incorporated or not. A workshop will be set up for October 5 with a set agenda, a
facilitator and will be no more than 3 hours.

XI.POLICIES
Discussion was had regarding the “R” harassment policies (ACAA-R, ACAB-R). It was noted if section 2 is removed (unlawful
discrimination/harassment complaint procedure), all complaints would then be required to go through the Title IX sexual



412
413
414
415
416
417
418
419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428
429
430
431
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440
441
442
443
444
445
446
447
448
449
450
451
452
453
454
455
456
457
458
459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466
467
468
469
470
471
472
473

harassment complaint procedure; it will make it difficult at the building level because the process is so involved with many more
steps than a standard complaint.

A MOTION was made by Ms. Lavallee and SECONDED by Mr. White to accept policy ACAA Harassment and Sexual
Harassment of Students as written. *

A discussion was had regarding the word “equitable” in the first sentence of the “R” policies and what it means and if it should be
changed to equal.

*Voting: six ayes, one abstention from Chairman LoVerme, motion carried.

The discussion continued regarding the word “equitable” in the first sentence of the “R” policies. Chair asked the Board how
many were in favor of keeping the word equitable. Votes tallied as 3 ayes, 3 nays (Mr. Kofalt, Mr. Post, Mr. Kofalt), Chairman
LoVerme breaks the tie with an aye vote in favor. The word equitable will remain.

A MOTION was made by Ms. Lavallee and SECONDED by Mr. White to accept policy ACAA-R Student
Discrimination/Harassment and Title IX Sexual Harassment Complain Procedures as written. **

A discussion continued regarding the word “equitable” in the first sentence of the “R” policies. Ms. LaPlante as the HR/Title IX
Coordinator provided her interpretation of it. Discussion continued. Suggested to use “fair and impartial”. It was noted the policy
was written by Drummond and Woodsum Law Firm and recently updated. Superintendent expressed as an administrator, he
would be OK with changing it to “fair and impartial”. He spoke that equal if very different than equitable and gave an example of
two kids with one not understanding the act of discrimination, there is not an equal consequence in some circumstances. He does
not recommend using equal. Chairman confirms keeping it as equitable.

**Voting: four ayes, three nays from Mr. Kofalt, Mr. Post, Mr. Vanderhoof, (Chairman LoVerme voted to break the tie at 3-3),
motion carried.

Confirmed, equitable stands. It was expressed if any members wanted to pull out one of the remaining polices to discuss or could
they be voted on together. No objection heard.

A MOTION was made by Ms. Lavallee and SECONDED by My. White to accept policies ACAB Harassment and Sexual
Harassment of School Employees, ACAB-R Employee Discrimination/Harassment and Title 1X Sexual Harassment Complaint
Procedures, AC Nondiscrimination/Equal Opportunity, as written. ***

Mr. Vanderhoof requested to pull out policy ACAB-R as he will vote no to this policy and with it included in the motion, he
would vote no on all of them. Ms. Lavallee confirms her motion stands.

***Voting: four ayes, two nays, one abstention from Chairman LoVerme, motion carried.
Chairman asks if there is discussion on the DAF policies. None heard.

A MOTION was made by Ms. Lavallee and SECONDED by Mr. Mannarino to accept policies DAF-1 Allowability, DAF-2 Cash
Management and Fund Control, DAF-3 Procurement, DAF-10 Grant Budget Reconciliation, as written.
Voting: six ayes, one abstention from Chairman LoVerme, motion carried.

XII. ACTION ITEMS
a. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting
A MOTION was made by Mr. Vanderhoof and SECONDED by Mr. White to approve the minutes of August 10, 2021 as written.
Voting: six ayes; one abstention from Chairman LoVerme, motion carried.

A MOTION was made by Mr. Vanderhoof and SECONDED by Mr. Mannarino to approve the nonpublic minutes of August 10,
2021 as written.
Voting: six ayes; one abstention from Chairman LoVerme, motion carried.

XIII. COMMITTEE REPORTS
i. Policy Committee
Ms. Lavallee gave an update on the committee’s work. There are a number of policies that will be submitted at the next meeting.
It was noted the policy for appointing someone to a vacant board member seat needs to be updated to follow the RSA. She
reported Ms. Fowler provided her with a master list of policies. Each committee member will go through this taking about 5
policies at a time and reviewing each and reporting back to the committee. Any suggested changes will be reviewed, revise,
debated and be sent to the Board, if no changes we will add the revision date to the policy. Some of the policies that are indicated



474
475
476
477
478
479
480
481
482
483
484
485
486
487
488
489
490
491
492
493
494
495
496
497
498
499
500
501
502
503
504
505
506
507
508
509
510
511
512
513
514
515
516
517
518
519
520
521
522
523
524
525
526
527
528
529
530
531
532
533

534

with an “R” (not all) are procedural, or forms and do not require a Board vote; she will let the Board know if they will be
discussing those. She will have policies for the board packet at the Sept. 14 meeting.

ii. Budget Liaison
Mr. Vanderhoof reported the budget committee met on Aug. 17 and had a meet and greet with the Superintendent and Business
Administrator. Discussion was had regarding how the last couple of years went, format, and how they want it and what they want
to see so that they can create Pivot Tables. They discussed whether they want percentages to be set. There was a lot of review and
discussion. Everyone seemed happy to have Ms. LaPlante onboard. There was not a lot of discussion on setting any goals for the
upcoming budget season other than the reporting piece. Chairman LoVerme brought up the idea of having just one joint budget
meeting a month, nothing else on the agenda and have everyone prepared with all the information that may be needed to help
facilitate the process. It was noted with the subcommittee meetings monthly it is a lot. Discussion was had regarding the concept
including concern of regular business only happening once a month for the Board. Ms. LaPlante voiced she has it all laid out. She
has concern especially with the number of new staff and administration; this is new to everyone. She values the concept although
is also concerned with providing timely information but will support whatever is decided. It was suggested to keep the agenda
shorter on days of the joint meetings. It was noted that it would be prudent when the packets are sent out, to send any questions to
the Superintendent so there is time to get the answers out and time for that to be digested before the meeting. There was no action
taken to change the meetings.

XIV. RESIGNATIONS / APPOINTMENTS / LEAVES

a. FYI New hire Jacklyn Bird-LCS Custodian

FYI New Hire-Patricia Avron-LCS Paraprofessional

c. Resignation-Anne Setaro-WLC Paraprofessional
Resignation-Kassie Deschenes-Paraprofessional
FYI New Hire-Stephanie Barber-Food Service
FYI New Hire-Tammy Smith-Food Service
FYI New Hire-Donna Garnham-Food Service
FYI New Hire-Tanya Dean-WLC SPED Paraprofessional
FYT New Hire-Shawn Boyce-WLC SPED Paraprofessional

Superintendent reviewed the new hires and resignations. He reviewed nominations for Judi Wing, FRES Title 1 Tutor and Gisele
Dailey FRES, SPED Case Manager.

A MOTION was made by Mr. Post and SECONDED by Ms. Lavallee to accept the nomination of Judi Wing and Gisele Dailey.
Discussion moved to nonpublic.
Mr. Post WITHDREW his MOTION.

e NEW SPED LEGISLATION
Mr. Post spoke of challenges with students coming in with special needs and budget crunches. The Governor signed a bill, SB
147 allowing school districts to join with other districts and create risk pools. He reviewed the bill and just wants everyone to be
aware of it. Mr. Kofalt spoke regarding a similar bill, which has been a hot issue because the state was not putting up its share.
He reviewed issue he sees with it. He believes the risk pool would emerge from something similar to the local government center,
instead of putting money in a rainy day fund you are providing insurance and like all insurances it could protect you from
catastrophe or it could raise everyone’s cost. He voted for it but he tends to lean against doing it. Risk pooling causes
expenditures to go up. Mr. Post will share the information with the Board. Mr. Pratt reported we did not have a lot of SPED aid
from last year. He and Ms. Post spoke about another type of program; when a district budgets for SPED out of district, that year
the money falls to the district they are in. We spoke of having a conversation at the state level. He sees this provision being great
for situations (for example) if a student moves from Michigan to us and the IEP has a component in it we would have to pay that
and he sees it having the most value there. Mr. Post added if someone started in Milford (for example) they would budget that
cost and that would follow them for the first year if they moved here. At least you would have some stability in the budget. Mr.
Pratt added with the budget being so early here it may benefit us.

XV. PUBLIC COMMENTS
The public comment section of the agenda was read.

Ms. Lavoie spoke regarding her last comments. She knows the Board is not required to answer it but she is curious if anyone did
read through this plan (Ms. Lavallee and Mr. Kofalt raised their hands) regarding reviewing the guidance documents. If anyone
read through and familiarized themselves with it. She expressed her comment is the Board needs to do better. The primary part of
this meeting was COVID, the state put out guidelines. She sent the link to the whole board and the Superintendent 2 hours after
the meeting so you had time. You owe the community and the students to do better. She recommends to the Board having 2
members on the call, it is live with Dr. Chan and they will give you clarification on the call.



535
536
537
538
539
540
541
542
543
544

545
546
547
548
549
550
551
552
553
554
555
556
557
558
559
560
561
562
563
564
565
566
567
568
569
570
571
572
573
574
575
576
577
578
579
580
581
582
583
584
585
586
587
588
589
590
591
592
593
594
595

Chairman LoVerme called out all the phone numbers and names joined in the meeting asking if they wanted to comment.

Mr. Brian Krot spoke that he is not a resident from Lyndeborough or Wilton but asked if the Board would let him speak as a
former employee of WLC. No objection heard. He thanked the towns of WLC; he served as a social studies teacher. He submitted
his resignation yesterday to the Superintendent as he has an opportunity to teach in CT, which allow him to cut down his travel
time. He thanked the Board for his employment and hopes he is leaving WLC in a better spot.

Mr. Lavallee asked if the Board would talk to Ms. Leslie Browne or Mr. Jeff Jones about the budget committee opening.
Chairman LoVerme responded he will get their input.

XVI. SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS
Mr. Mannarino suggested on Sept. 28 meeting to invite teachers from each school to give their input on how things are going so
far.

Mr. Vanderhoof expressed that he agrees we need to do better. He didn’t read through it but lives with someone who is intimately
familiar with it, is on those calls and he has heard/discussed a lot about it. He thanked everyone for coming out. He notes as you
hear there was a lot of, “if you reach out to us, we will make it work™. It seems for some of this to come to a head, parents have to
reach out. You have to call and say | want my kid to have a locker. That will put the issue to the forefront. He wishes he had time
to read everything but there are other committees and there is a lot of material. He does think we can do better but there is a lot of
work put into it. He adds advocate for your kids and your opinion and keep coming.

A member of the public expressed we elected you, if you can’t handle the commitment step down. It is unacceptable. Mr.
Vanderhoof wanted to address the comments. Chairman LoVerme stopped the exchange, as this is not public comment.

Ms. Lavallee thanked the WLCTA for coming out and making the comments in the beginning; she loves to see the teachers here
and the public show up. We have many other important issues throughout the year and wants to see more parents and community
showing up to give their opinion. In regard to the plan, she felt we needed to take action but wanted to be clear that her opinion
will change and what she is recommending tonight does not necessarily mean she will feel the same way later. She feels strongly
especially as a healthcare worker, and uses that knowledge to guide her and at the end of the day, she needs to know she made the
best conscientious choice she can make. She knows not all are happy with it but it is not written in stone; and we will be
reviewing it per our schedule and the next one is Sept. 28.

Mr. Post spoke that he takes Alyssa feedback to heart. He did look at it and didn’t think it would pass tonight, doesn’t think it
should; it was a narrow win. The Chair had to break the tie. He thinks it is a bad plan; it’s not a good action. He will probably
make a motion at the next meeting to rescind it. He adds during the week, Dr. Chan’s meetings are in the afternoon, it is difficult
as he has a job. He thanked all for coming in and speaking. This is a tough issue and without you here, we would have made it in
an echo chamber. The survey was also very helpful. Despite what we heard tonight, there are a lot of stakeholders we are
responsible for, students, community leaders, staff, teachers, executive team and it is a balance keeping it all in place. This isn’t
easy and thinks we are doing the best we can.

Chairman LoVerme thanked all for coming out and being online. Whether you believe, what they have to say or not, he listens to
everyone and takes notes. He put in a lot of hours on this. He doesn’t use his own job as an excuse because he sits up at night and
looks at this. He notes he did have to stop an outburst and he is sorry for that. He wishes your children the best next week on the
30" For some of the kids it has been 17 months since they stepped in school. Some didn’t see their friends, didn’t sit down at a
lunch table and have that hot meal. This is one place some kids get a hot meal and one place they don’t get yelled at. We are not
all going to agree on things, everything is a work in progress.

Ms. Lavallee welcomed Mr. Golding to the School Board and thanked Ms. Kirsch and Mr. Comley for coming out tonight, it is
temporary and throw your hat in the election.

XVII. NON-PUBLIC SESSION RSA 91-A: 311 (A) (B) (O)
A MOTION was made by Mr. White and SECONDED by Mr. Mannarino to enter Non-Public Session to discuss personnel and
student matters RSA 91-A: 3 11 (4) (B) (C) at 10:35pm.
Voting: via roll call vote, six ayes; one abstention from Chairman LoVerme, motion carried.

RETURN TO PUBLIC SESSION
The Board entered public session at 11:27pm.

A MOTION was made to accept the resignation of Jane Lehto, with 30 days’ notice, by Mr. Post and SECONDED by Ms.
Lavallee.



596
597
598
599
600
601
602
603
604
605
606
607
608

Voting: six ayes; one abstention from Chairman LoVerme, motion carried.

A MOTION was made to appoint Gisele Dailey as SPED Case Manager/Teacher at FRES, by Mr. Post and SECONDED by Mr.
White.
Voting: six ayes,; one abstention from Chairman LoVerme, motion carried.

XVIII. ADJOURNMENT
A MOTION was made by Mr. White and SECONDED by Ms. Lavallee to adjourn the Board meeting at 11:32pm.
Voting: six ayes; one abstention from Chairman LoVerme, motion carried.

Respectfully submitted,
Kristina Fowler



Nonpublic Session Minutes
Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District

Date: 8/24/21 Time: 10:35pm

Members Present: Alex LoVerme, Jonathan Vanderhoof, Matt Mannarino, Mark Legere, Jim
Kofalt, Brianne Lavallee, Charlie Post and Paul White

A MOTION was made by Mr. White and SECONDED by Mr. Mannarino to enter Non-Public Session
to discuss personnel and student matters RSA 91-A: 3 11 (A)(B) (C) at 10:35pm.
Voting: via roll call vote, six ayes; one abstention from Chairman LoVerme, motion carried.

Specific Statutory Reason cited as foundation for the nonpublic session:

X RSAO91-A:3, 1l (a) The dismissal, promotion, or compensation of any public employee or the
disciplining of such employee, or the investigation of any charges against him or her, unless the
employee affected (1) has a right to a public meeting, and (2) requests that the meeting be open, in which
case the request shall be granted.

X RSAO91-A:3,1I(b) The hiring of any person as a public employee.

~x___ RSAO91-A:3, ll(c) Matters which, if discussed in public, would likely affect adversely the reputation
of any person, other than a member of this board, unless such person requests an open meeting. This
exemption shall extend to include any application for assistance or tax abatement or waiver of a fee, fine
or other levy, if based on inability to pay or poverty of the applicant.

RSA 91-A:3, II(d) Consideration of the acquisition, sale or lease of real or personal property which, if
discussed in public, would likely benefit a party or parties whose interests are adverse to those of the
general community.

__ RSA91-A:3,1l(e) Consideration or negotiation of pending claims or litigation which has been
threatened in writing or filed against this board or any subdivision thereof, or against any member
thereof because of his or her membership therein, until the claim or litigation has been fully adjudicated
or otherwise settled

__ RSA91-A:3,1I(i) Consideration of matters relating to the preparation for and the carrying out of
emergency functions, including training to carry out such functions, developed by local or state safety
officials that are directly intended to thwart a deliberate act that is intended to result in widespread or
severe damage to property or widespread injury or loss of life.

Roll Call vote to enter nonpublic session:  Alex LoVerme Abstain
Jonathan Vanderhoof Aye
Charlie Post Aye
Brianne Lavallee Aye
Matt Mannarino Aye
Paul White Aye
Jim Kofalt Aye

Draft/Not Sealed/Nonpublic Session Minutes: Page 1 of 2



Entered nonpublic session at 10:35p.m.

Other persons present during nonpublic session: Superintendent Peter Weaver, Special Education
Director Ned Pratt, Clerk Kristina Fowler

Description of matters discussed and final decisions made: Discussion was had regarding personnel
and student matters. No action taken.

Note: Under RSA 91-A:3, lIl. Minutes of proceedings in nonpublic sessions shall be kept and the record of all
actions shall be promptly made available for public inspection, except as provided in this section. Minutes and
decisions reached in nonpublic session shall be publicly disclosed within 72 hours of the meeting, unless, by
recorded vote of 2/3 of the members present, it is determined that divulgence of the information likely would
affect adversely the reputation of any person other than a member of this board, or render the proposed action
of the board ineffective, or pertain to terrorism. In the event of such circumstances, information may be
withheld until, in the opinion of a majority of members, the aforesaid circumstances no longer apply.

A MOTION was made by Mr. White and SECONDED by Ms. Lavallee to exit the Non-Public Session
at 11:27pm.

Voting: via roll call vote, five ayes, one nay from Mr. Vanderhoof, one abstention from Chairman
LoVerme, motion carried.

Public session reconvened at 11:27p.m.

These minutes recorded by: Kristina Fowler

Draft/Not Sealed/Nonpublic Session Minutes: Page 2 of 2



ACE - PROCEDURAL SAFEGUARDS NONDISCRIMINATION ON THE
BASIS OF HANDICAP/DISABILITY

The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District provides the following Notice of
Procedural Safeguards to parents/guardians and handicapped persons, as required by 34 C.F.R.
Sections 104.7, 104.8, 104.22(4)(f), and 104.36 of the Regulations implementing Section 504 of
The Rehabilitation Act of 1973. Such Procedural safeguards are found in pertinent federal and
state laws and regulations. In additional, all staff, students, parents and other interested persons
are directed to the New Hampshire Department of Education Procedural Safeguards Handbook.

The District does not discriminate on the basis of disability in admission or access to, or
treatment of or employment in, its programs and activities.

The District provides a grievance procedure with appropriate due process rights. Director of
Student Support Services is the designated employee, charged with coordinating efforts to
comply with Section 504. The parent/guardian of handicapped students or any handicapped
person may use the grievance procedure established by the Board.

Grievance Procedure

Parents/guardians of a student with a disability have the right to notify the above-designated
employee with their complaint. Additionally, any disabled individual also has the right to notify
the above-designated employee with their complaint.

The designated employee will provide an initial response within ten (10) days of receipt of the
complaint. The parties will attempt to work out their differences informally in a prompt and
equitable manner. A written record of the complaint resolution should be made within ten (10)
working days of completion. Both parties will receive a copy of the written record. Additionally,
the Superintendent will keep a copy on file.

If the issue is not resolved after the informal resolution process, the complainant may: (a) request
that the Board places this matter on its agenda; or (b) notify the Superintendent of the complaint.
The Superintendent will notify the Board if he/she receives such a complaint.

If the Board schedules the matter for a hearing, the complainant may be represented by any
person the complainant chooses, including legal counsel. The complainant may present
information through documents and other evidence and witnesses, and may examine witnesses
presented by the School District.

Within ten (10) working days of either of the above options, a written record should be made of
the decision. Both parties will receive a copy of the written record. Additionally, the
Superintendent will keep a copy on file.

Procedural Safeguards

As required by 34 C.F.R. Section 104.36, parents/guardians of a student who needs or is believed
to need special instruction and related services have the right, with respect to any action
regarding identification, evaluation, and placement to:

1. Notice of referral/identification, evaluation, and placement process, with appropriate
consent form.



2. Examine all relevant records.

3. An impartial hearing, at any time, with respect to any actions regarding identification,
evaluation, or placement of persons who need or are believed to need special education
and related services; an opportunity for participation by the parent/guardian and
representation of counsel as provided under the Individuals with Disabilities Education
Act.

4. A review process.

Legal References:
34 C.F.R. Part 104, Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap Section
504 of The Rehabilitation Act of 1973

First Reading: May 11, 2010
Second Reading: June 2, 2010
Final Adoption: June 2, 2010



AD - PHILOSOPHY OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT

The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School Board will develop a mission statement for the
District. The Board should review and revise the statement annually.

Legal Reference:
NH Code of Administrative Rules, Section Ed. 306.05, School Philosophy, Goals, and
Objectives
HB 1499

First Reading: September 14, 2010

Second Reading: October 12, 2010

Final Adoption: October 12,2010

Reviewed: October 9, 2018, October 23, 2018
Revised: October 23, 2018



BDE - COMMITTEES AND DELEGATES
Category R

The Board may have the following standing committees as deemed necessary, with
responsibilities as defined below:

1. Policy Committee: To review and recommend new policies, amendments to policies or
revisions of policies. To create a schedule in which to review current policies in order to
see if they meet current law and practice. The Policy Committee will make
recommendations, when appropriate, to the school board for their consideration.

2. Facilities Committee: To oversee all matters pertaining to District facilities. The
Committee shall be responsible for the ongoing development of a Facilities plan to
include

> A one year plan due each year by October 1% that would include specifics for
budget planning

» A 3 year plan, revised on a yearly basis

» A long term plan, revised on a yearly basis

The Facilities Committee will include up to 2 Budget Committee members in its
membership.

The authority to make any and all final decisions regarding any Committee recommendations
shall remain with the full Board.

Standing and special committees and delegations shall be appointed by the Chairperson of the
Board, from among the membership of the School Board and approved by vote of a majority of
the Board. Committees will meet, on a regularly scheduled basis or as needed on problems
pertaining to the committee’s specific scope of responsibility and will make recommendations
for action by the full Board.

When public participation is needed on School District Committees, public notice will be given

after-the-second-board-meetinginMareh. Members of the public will have 45 10 days to show

their interest. Those members of the public will be named on an annual basis or as needed to

the designated committee by a vote of the full board inAprilofeach-schoolyear.

Additionally, each standing committee:
e Will elect its own chair and vice chair.

e Will create a public notice of a meeting, keep minutes and provide a written summary of
meetings to the board. Unless otherwise noted, meetings are public and therefore
members of the community, educators and budget committee members maybe invited as
needed.

e The superintendent, or their designee, shall be ex officio (non-voting) members of all
standing committees.



e Only School Board members will have voting rights.

e Except as authorized by law or Board action, a standing committee may research issues
and make recommendations for Board action, but in no circumstances may a committee
take official action. All final decisions shall remain with the full Board.

e The number of members on a standing committee (not to exceed the number for a board
quorum) and/or the responsibilities of a standing committee may be modified at any time
by a vote of the Board.

The full Board reserves the right to disband or discontinue any standing committee at any time,
by majority vote of the full Board.

First Reading: August 24, 2011

Second Reading: October 11, 2011

Final Adoption: October 11, 2011

Policy Amended: May 28, 2013

Reviewed: September 10, 2019, September 24, 2019
Revised: October 8, 2019



KEC - POLICY ON RECONSIDERATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL
MATERIALS

Persons not in agreement with the school on its selection of beeks-er-ether instructional material
and who wish a particular book or material to be reviewed must submit to the Principal a
"Request for Reconsideration of Instructional Materials." The request forms are available at the
school office.

The Principal, upon receipt of a "Request for Reconsideration" will acknowledge receipt to the
complainant and list anticipated steps to be taken. The Principal will then notify the Beok-
Review-Committee-curriculum committee or designee and schedule meetings necessary to
review the complaint and to write a report.

The final report will be forwarded to the complainant and the Superintendent of Schools. If the
complainant is dissatisfied, the next step is to submit the request to the Superintendent of Schools
for action. If the complainant does not accept the Superintendent's decision, the complainant

may request a review by the Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School Board, whose decision
will be final.

During the investigation the instructional material will remain in use unless a Selection
Committee votes to remove or restrict the material until a final decision is made.

Appendix KEC-R

First Reading: September 14, 2010
Second Reading: October 12,2010
Final Adoption: October 12,2010
Revised:



KEC-R

RECONSIDERATION OF
INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS

Persons not in agreement with the school on its selection of beeks instructional materials
and who wish a particular book to be reviewed must submit to the Principal a "Request
for Reconsideration of Instructional Materials." The request forms are available at the
school office.

The Principal, upon receipt of a "Request for Reconsideration" will acknowledge receipt
to the complainant and list anticipated steps to be taken. The Principal will then notify
the BeokReview-Committee curriculum committee or designee, and schedule meetings
necessary to review the complaint and write a report.

The final report will be forwarded to the complainant and the Superintendent of Schools.
If the complainant is dissatisfied, the next step is to submit their request to the
Superintendent of Schools for action. If the complainant does not accept the
Superintendent's decision, the complainant may request a review by the
Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School Board, whose decision will be final.

During the investigation, the beek instructional material will remain in use unless the
BoeokSelection-Committee curriculum committee or designee desires to remove or
restrict the book until a final decision is made.

Required Reading

Author Textbook

Title Hardcover
Publisher Paperback
Request initiated by Selected Reading
Address Hardcover
Telephone Paperback
Complainant represents

Media Presentation

Himself Record

Organization



Film name
Film Strip
Other group
Slides name

1. To what particular contents do you object? Please be specific; cite pages if
possible.

2. What of value is there in this work?

3. What do you feel might be the result of reading (viewing) this work?

4. For what age group would you recommend this work? )

5. Did you read (view) the entire work?

If not, what pages or sections?

6. Are you aware of the judgment of this work by critics?

7. Are you aware of the instructional purpose for using this work?

8. What do you believe is the theme or purpose of this work?

9. What would you prefer the school do about this work?
Do not assign or recommend it to my child.

Withdraw it from all students.



Reevaluate it.

10. What work of equal value would you recommend to replace the one you question?

(Signature of Complainant)

Date:
See policy KEC

First Reading: September 14, 2010
Second Reading: October 12, 2010
Final Adoption: October 12, 2010
Revised:



Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District
School Administrative Unit #63

192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082
603-732-9227

Peter Weaver Ned Pratt Kristie LaPlante Emily Stefanich
Superintendent of Schools Director of Student Support Services Business Administrator District Curriculum Coordinator

To: Shawn Boyce
FROM: Peter Weaver
DATE: 8/30/21

RE: Resignation

In accordance with Policy GCQC:
“A resignation by a licensed employee who is under contract to the school should be submitted
to the Superintendent. Said resignation of a licensed employee may take effect on a date

approved by the Superintendent acting as agenda of the School Board.

I am in receipt of your email dated August 30, 2021 that you intend to resign your position as
SPED paraprofessional. We wish you well in the future.

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District provides a safe and educational environment that promotes student exploration, critical thinking and
responsible citizenship.

The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status,
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice.



	WLC School Board Agenda 9.14.21
	Superintendent Report Sept. 2021
	WLC September 14, 2021 Principal's Report
	FRES September Board Report 21
	Curriculum Coordinator Report 9.14.21.pdf
	9.14.21 Curriculum Coordinator Report
	District Assessment Overview


